
  
 
 
 
 

 
County Buildings, Stafford 

DDI (01785) 276133 
Please ask for Mike Bradbury 

Email: michael.bradbury@staffordshire.gov.uk 
 

 
Pensions Panel 
 
Tuesday, 3 March 2015 
9.30 am 

Ivanovo Room - County Buildings 

 
John Tradewell 

Interim Chief Executive  
23 February 2015 

 

 
A G E N D A 

 
 

1. Apologies  
   
2. Declarations of Interest in accordance with Standing Order 16.5  
   
3. Minutes of meeting held on 2 December 2014 (Pages 1 - 2) 
   
4. Pension Fund Performance and Portfolio of Investments as at 31 

December 2014 
(Pages 3 - 30) 

   
 Report of the Director of Finance and Resources 

 
 

5. Approved Investment Strategy for Pension Fund Cash 2015/16 (Pages 31 - 38) 
   
 Report of the Director of Finance and Resources  
   
6. Dates of Future Meetings  
   
 16 March 2015 (Special Meeting) 

9 June 2015 
21 July 2015 
8 September 2015 
1 December 2015 
1 March 2016 

 
All meetings are scheduled to start at 9.30am at County Buildings, 
Stafford 
 

 

 
 

  



7. Exclusion of the Public  
   
 The Chairman to move:- 

 
‘That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business 
which involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the 
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended) indicated below’. 

 

   
 PART TWO  
   
 (All reports in this section are on pink paper)  
   
8. Exempt Minutes of the Meeting held on  2 December 2014 

(exemption paragraph 3) 
(Pages 39 - 46) 

   
9. Property - Confirmation of the action of the Director of Finance 

and Resources  
(Exemption Paragraph 3) 

(Pages 47 - 56) 

   
 Report of the Director of Finance and Resources  
   
10. Private Equity - Review of position at 31 December 2014 

(exemption paragraph 3) 
(Pages 57 - 58) 

   
 Report of the Director of Finance and Resources  
   
11. Strategic Benchmark Review and Monitoring  

(Exemption Paragraph 3) 
 

   
a) Economic and Market Update (Pages 59 - 64) 
   
 Report and Presentation by Hymans Robertson  
   
b) Review of Position as at 31 January 2015 (Pages 65 - 76) 
   
 Report of the Director of Finance and Resources 

 
(Report of Record Currency Management for the month ended 31 
January 2015 enclosed for information) 

 

   
12. Pension Fund Performance and Manager Monitoring for the 

quarter ended  31 December 2014  
(exemption paragraph 3) 

(Pages 77 - 142) 

   
 (Report of Portfolio Evaluation for the quarter ended 31 December 

2014 enclosed for information) 
 

   
13. Corporate Governance and Socially Responsible Investment 

Report Quarter 4 2014  
(exemption paragraph 3) 

(Pages 143 - 172) 

   
 Report of the Director of Finance and Resources  
  

 
 



14. Investing in Property  
(exemption paragraph 3) 

 

   
 Training and Presentation by Hymans Robertson 

 
 

   
15. Manager Presentation  

(exemption paragraph 3) 
(Pages 173 - 180) 

   
 To receive a presentation from Russell Investments on the 

performance of the Fund’s Emerging Market Equity portfolio. 
 
(Report of Russell Investments for the quarter ended 31 December 
2014 enclosed for information) 
 

 

   
 
 

Membership 
 

Philip Atkins (Chairman) 
Carolan Dobson 
Graeme Johnston 
David Thomas 
 

Stephen Sweeney 
Derek Davis, OBE 
Shelagh McKiernan 
Robert Marshall 
 

 
Note for Members of the Press and Public 
 
Filming of Meetings 
 
The Open (public) section of this meeting may be filmed for live or later broadcasting or 
other use, and, if you are at the meeting, you may be filmed, and are deemed to have 
agreed to being filmed and to the use of the recording for broadcast and/or other 
purposes. 
 
Recording by Press and Public 
 
Recording (including by the use of social media) by the Press and Public is permitted 
from the public seating area provided it does not, in the opinion of the chairman, disrupt 
the meeting.  
 
 





- 1 - 
 

Minutes of the Pensions Panel Meeting held on 2 December 2014 
 

Present:  Stephen Sweeney (in the chair) 
 

Attendance 

Derek Davis, OBE 
Shelagh McKiernan 
 

Robert Marshall 
 

 
Also in attendance: Carolan Dobson (Independent Adviser), Graeme Johnston 
(Hymans Robertson) and David Thomas (Independent Adviser). 
 
Apologies: Philip Atkins 
 
PART ONE 
 
22. Declarations of Interest in accordance with Standing Order 16.5 
 
There were no declarations of interest on this occasion. 
 
23. Minutes of meeting held on 9 September 2014 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of Meeting of the Pensions Panel held on 9 September 
2014 be confirmed and signed by the Chairman. 
 
24. Pension Fund  Investments as at 30 September 2014 
 
The Director of Finance and Resources submitted a summary of the performance of the 
Pension Fund together with a portfolio of the Fund’s investments as at 30 September 
2014. 
 
The Panel noted that, at £3.45 billion, the market value of the Fund at 30 September 
2014 was the highest market value of the Fund reported to date.  The Actuary had 
recently indicated that the funding level of the Fund has improved, since the actuarial 
valuation in March 2013, substantially as a result of the performance of investments.  
Also, on a ‘like for like’ comparison with 87 other Local Authority Pension Funds, 
Staffordshire’s funding level was above average. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Pension Fund performance and portfolio of investments for the 
quarter ended 30 September 2014 be noted. 
 
25. Dates of Future Meetings 
 
3 March 2015 
16 March 2015 (Special Meeting) 
9 June 2015 
21 July 2015 (Managers’ Day) 
8 September 2015 
1 December 2015 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



 

- 2 - 
 

1 March 2016 
 
All meetings are scheduled to start at 9.30am at County Buildings, Stafford.  
 
26. Exclusion of the Public 
 
RESOLVED - That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business which involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the 
paragraph of Part One of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended) indicated below. 
 
The Panel then proceeded to consider reports on the following issues: 
 
27. Exempt Minutes of Meeting held on 9 September 2014  
(exemption paragraph 3) 
 
28. Property - Confirmation of the action of the Director of Finance and 
Resources  
(exemption Paragraph 3) 
 
29. Private Equity - Review of position at 30 September 2014  
(exemption paragraph 3) 
 
30. Strategic Benchmark Review and Monitoring  
(exemption Paragraph 3) 
 
a) Economic and Market Update 
 
b) Review of Position as at 31 October 2014 
 
31. Pension Fund Performance and Manager Monitoring for the quarter ended  
30 September 2014  
(exemption paragraph 3) 
 
32. Corporate Governance and Socially Responsible Investment Report Quarter 
2 2014  
(exemption paragraph 3) 
 
33. UK Equity Benchmarks  
(exemption paragraph 3) 
 
34. Manager Presentation  
(exemption paragraph 3) 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

Page 2



Pensions Panel 03.03.15 

Item no 4 on Agenda 
 

Local Members Interest 

Nil  

 
PENSIONS PANEL – 3 MARCH 2015 

 
Report of the Director of Finance and Resources 

 
PENSION FUND INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 2014/15  

 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To provide, for information; 

 
i)  a summary of performance of the Staffordshire Pension Fund as at  

31 December 2014; and 
 
ii) a portfolio of the Pension Fund’s investments as at 31 December 2014. 
 

 
2. Performance Summary 
 
2.1 Period               Relative  
      Fund  Benchmark  Performance 
         %          %           %  
  

June 2014 Quarter    2.0        2.2         -0.2 
 
Sept 2014 Quarter    2.2        2.3         -0.1 
 
Dec 2014 Quarter    3.4        3.5         -0.1 
 
  

2.2 Global equities were broadly positive over the fourth quarter of the year with 
the MSCI World and MSCI All Countries World Indices rising by +3.25% and 
+2.91% respectively, in local currency terms.  

 
2.3 Oil prices fell sharply during the quarter which resulted in poor performances 

by the Energy and Commodity sectors. Russia was particularly badly affected 
by falling oil prices, with a significant depreciation in the rouble, to which the 
Russian government responded by raising interest rates, from 10.5% to 17% 
in December. 

 
2.4 The US economy continued to perform well during the quarter with positive 

revisions to Q3 GDP growth and continuing falls in the unemployment rate.  
The Federal Reserve ended its quantitative easing programme as expected in 
October 2014, but announced it would be patient before introducing a rise in 
interest rates. 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 3



Pensions Panel 03.03.15 

2.5  Europe performed less well in Q4 2014, with Greece’s forthcoming January 
elections causing political uncertainty and reigniting fears of a Greek exit from 
the EU. The European Central Bank pledged to continue monetary support for 
the region which helped to balance out growth and deflation fears.  

 
2.6 In the UK, November saw the Consumer Price Index (CPI) fall to 1%, its 

lowest level in 12 years. GDP continued to increase, with a rise of 0.7% for 
Q3. Post quarter end the first estimate of Q4 growth was announced at 0.5% 
prompting fears the UK recovery was beginning to soften. 

 
2.7 In other markets, China reduced its interest rates to try to combat lower 

growth and Japan saw an improving picture as the market reacted well to the 
government’s monetary and fiscal policies. 

 
3. Fund Value 
 
3.1 At £3.56 billion, the market value of the Fund, at 31 December 2014, 

continues to increase above that of previously reported levels. The Fund 
generated a positive return of 3.4% over the quarter, slightly behind the 
benchmark return of 3.5%. Over the year to date, the Fund has returned 
7.7%, which is above the return assumptions made by the Actuary in their 
2013 valuation. It is pleasing to note that this continues to be in line with the 
longer term Fund returns of 7.7% per annum, over the last 20 years.    
 

4. Portfolio of Investments as at 31 December 2014 
 
4.1 A copy of the Staffordshire Pension Fund’s portfolio of investments as at 31 

December 2014 is attached.  
 
 
 

Andrew Burns 
Director of Finance and Resources 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Contact :  Melanie Stokes 
Telephone No. (01785) 276330 
 
Background Documents: 
Portfolio Evaluation Performance Measurement Data 
 
 

Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Pensions Panel 03.03.15 

Item no 5 on Agenda 
 

Local Members Interest 

NIL  

 
 

PENSIONS PANEL – 3 MARCH 2015 
 

Report of the Director of Finance and Resources 
 

Annual Investment Strategy for Pension Fund Cash 2015/16 
 
 
Recommendation of the Chairman 
 
1. That the Pensions Panel approves the proposed Annual Investment Strategy 

(AIS) for the Staffordshire Pension Fund, for the investment of internally 
managed Pension Fund cash. 

 
Reasons for Recommendations 
 
2. The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of 

Funds) Regulations 2009 require the administering authority to formulate a 
policy for the management of Pension Fund cash. The Government also 
provides specific guidance to local authorities under the Local Government 
Act 2003 in completing an AIS; the relevant principles of which have been 
used to structure this AIS for the Staffordshire Pension Fund. 

 
Background 
 
3. The Pension Fund has a small strategic asset allocation to cash of 1%, 

recognising that cash balances are needed for the day to day management of 
the Fund. This cash is managed by Officers in the County Council’s Treasury 
and Pension Fund Team; mainly in the short-term to provide liquidity to pay 
bills as they arise. It is not invested solely to seek a return and is not, 
therefore, usually considered as a major asset allocation decision.  

 
4. The cash does increase from time to time, pending investment in other major 

asset classes e.g. property. The proposed AIS will therefore need to allow for 
such situations occurring. Also, the Pensions Panel will need to agree these 
temporary increases as part of its quarterly review of the strategic asset 
allocation benchmark, together with any associated ranges.  

 
5. The proposed AIS will not deal with the segregated, relatively small working 

cash balances held by the custodian (Northern Trust) under the control of the 
investment managers or with cash arising from occasional transitional activity. 
Overnight, Northern Trust sweep funds into their “AAA” rated Money Market 
Funds (MMFs). 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 31



Pensions Panel 03.03.15 

 
 
 
 
AIS for Pension Fund Cash 2015/16 
 

Objectives of investment  
 

6. The proposed main objectives for the AIS are to: 
 

a) provide security of capital (i.e. ensure the return of the money and 
interest);  

b) provide liquidity (i.e. pay the bills as they fall due and ensure funds are 
available for reinvestment when needed); and 

c) earn interest (i.e. obtain a reasonable return within the constraints outlined 
at a) and b)). 

 
7. The 1% allocation to cash will by its nature need to be kept short-term. Where 

balances exceed this allocation, say pending investment in other asset 
classes, then investments will be needed that recognise their longer-term 
nature. It is anticipated that initially, any longer term requirements will be 
fulfilled through the use of ‘cash plus or short bond funds’ (see paragraph 17). 
Outside of this, the Pensions Panel will need to assess any specific 
requirements and consider any changes that may be required to the AIS. 

 
Credit Rating Criteria and the Approved Lending List (the List) 

 
8. Government regulations state that local authorities have to decide how they 

define a ‘high credit rated’ counterparty (i.e. a bank or a building society).  
 In the past, the Pension Fund has relied on advice and creditworthiness 

services from Treasury Management Advisors, such as those appointed by 
the County Council.  

 
9. However, once fully invested in property, there is forecast to be a low level of 

cash for the Pension Fund in 2015/16 and it is considered highly unlikely that 
the Pension Fund will need to enter into a large number of term deposits with 
financial institutions. Indeed, given recent changes in the Government’s 
attitude and their treatment of banks that fail, the risk that depositors such as 
the Pension Fund could lose a proportion of their investments (known as ‘bail-
in risk’) has been heightened. As such, therefore, it is not considered 
necessary for the Pension Fund to adopt a full creditworthiness service 
approach. Instead, a simplified AIS, consisting of three elements, yet still 
acknowledging the ‘high credit rating’ concept is proposed. 

 
 (i)  Regulation Investments  
 
10. Government Regulations specify the type of financial instruments that can be 

used and they divide them into ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investments. 
 
 

Page 32



Pensions Panel 03.03.15 

 Specified investments are investments made in sterling for a period of less 
than a year that are invested with: 

• the UK Government; 

• a local authority; 

• a parish or community council (unlikely to be used by the Pension Fund); 

• a body, or in an investment instrument, that has a ‘high credit rating’. 
 
11. The first three named investments can be used by the Pension Fund by virtue 

of their inclusion within the guidance; these are referred to as Regulation 
Investments in the remainder of this report. It is important to note that these 
classes of investment are not subject to “bail-in” risk as mentioned earlier in 
this report. 

 
(ii)  Money Market Funds (MMF’s) 

 
12. MMF’s are pooled investment vehicles consisting of money market deposits 

and similar instruments. MMF’s have been used for some time by the Pension 
Fund and by Northern Trust as stated earlier. They are also widely used by 
other public and private sector bodies. 

 
13. MMF’s proposed for use by the Pension Fund would be ‘AAA’ rated, the 

highest possible credit rating and they would have the following attributes: 
 

• Diversified – MMF’s are diversified across many different investments, 
far more than the Pension Fund could hope to achieve on its own 
account. 

• Same day liquidity – this means that funds can be accessed on a daily 
basis. 

• Ring-fenced assets – the investments are owned by the investors and 
not the fund management company. 

• Custodian – the investments are also managed by an independent 
custodian, who operates at arms-length from the fund management 
company. 

 
14. All treasury activity carries an element of risk and MMF’s are no different. In 

the event of a further financial crisis, the failure of one or more of an MMF’s 
investments could lead to a run on the MMF as investors rush to redeem their 
investment. This could then spread to other MMF’s as investors take flight 
from this asset class. 

 
15. The very low interest rate environment also threatens the ongoing continuity 

of MMF’s. Each MMF charges a fee and this could mean that interest earned 
became negative after its deduction. If this problem arose then it would be a 
matter of moving funds to an alternative class of investment. 

 
16. MMF’s as described in these paragraphs are therefore judged to meet the 

criteria of an instrument that meets the definition of a ‘high credit rating’. 
Providing daily liquidity, the Pension Fund currently has accounts open with 5 
MMF’s. 

 

Page 33



Pensions Panel 03.03.15 

17. Additionally, the Pension Fund invests in a ‘cash plus’ fund. ‘Cash plus and 
short bond’ funds provide a useful longer term option to investments in 
MMF’s.  Whilst they are considered to be slightly higher risk, it is anticipated 
that they will provide a higher return. An investment period of at least six 
months is generally recommended and they also provide some diversification 
away from other short term investments. It is proposed to delegate the 
decision on the further use of ‘cash plus and short bond’ funds to the Director 
of Finance and Resources, after taking appropriate advice.     

  
 (iii) The Pension Fund’s Banker 
 
18. The new banker for the Pension Fund, Lloyds Bank has been transitioned in 

successfully and is now fully operational. 
 
19. Under the new arrangements relatively low levels of cash will be retained with 

Lloyds Bank each night earning interest at a market rate. It is important to 
note that funds are available daily, they are not committed for any period of 
time. 

 
 Investment Diversification 
 
20. In order to ensure diversification, it is proposed that the maximum investment 

limit for AAA rated diversified MMF’s which are, by default, already invested 
across a larger number of counterparties, is the lower of 50% of total cash or 
£25m, per MMF. Cash plus and short bond funds will also be subject to these 
limits. This approach is considered reasonable for the Pension Fund’s risk 
profile; taking into account that cash is only one asset class and the Fund 
already has diversification across other asset classes. 

  
21. To allow the practical management of the treasury transactions each day, it is 

proposed that the choice over the investments made is delegated to the 
Director of Finance and Resources. 
 
Investment duration 

 
22. The investment arrangements set-out in this report are of short duration; with 

the exception of cash plus or short bond funds, investments in an MMF or with 
the Pension Fund’s banker are liquid and available at one days notice. Other 
regulation investments may be invested for up to 12 months but more typically 
will be for a month or two. 

 
23. The Pension Fund’s Approved Lending List is shown at Appendix 2. The 

maximum recommended investment duration for 2015/16 works within the 
definition of a specified investment which is to not invest for more than a year. 

 
Risk  

 
24. Cash is only a small part of the overall investments of the Pension Fund and 

the wider aspects of risk are taken into account in the strategic asset 
allocation where cash forms part of a diversified portfolio.   

Page 34



Pensions Panel 03.03.15 

 
25. Looking at cash in isolation, then treasury management usually recognises 

that the two prime risk areas are security and liquidity. It is considered that 
focussing primarily on these two risks is appropriate for the Fund’s relatively 
low 1% allocation to cash, for day to day cash management purposes; 
although the AIS has the flexibility to consider yield in the use of higher risk 
funds.  

 
26. Should the Pensions Panel decide at some point in the future to make a 

higher strategic allocation to cash, where seeking a higher return would 
become more important, the balance of risk and reward would need to be 
revisited.   

 
Review of Strategy 

 
27. The main circumstances where a revised strategy would be prepared include 

a change in: 
 

• the Fund’s strategic asset allocation;  

• the economic environment; 

• the financial risk environment; and  

• the regulatory environment. 
 

28. Whilst the Pensions Panel will be responsible for approving any revised 
strategy, it may be necessary for action to be taken quickly. It is proposed, 
therefore, that the responsibility for assessing the circumstances above will 
rest with the Director of Finance and Resources.  

 
  

Andrew Burns 
Director of Finance and Resources 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Author’s Name: Melanie Stokes 

Treasury and Pension Fund Manager 
Telephone No. (01785) 276330 

Page 35



Pensions Panel 03.03.15 

 

Appendix 1 
 
 
Equalities implications: There are no equalities implications arising directly from 
this report. 
 
 
Legal implications: There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.  
 
 
Resource and Value for money implications: All resource and value for money 
implications are covered in the body of this report. 
 
 
Risk implications: Risk is inherent in an AIS and is dealt with throughout the report. 
 
 
Climate Change implications: There are no direct climate change implications 
arising from this report. 
 
Health Impact Assessment Screening: There are no direct implications arising 
from this report 

Page 36



Pensions Panel 03.03.15 

    Appendix 2 
 

PENSIONS PANEL – 3 MARCH 2015 
 

Staffordshire Pension Fund 
Approved Lending List 

 
 

Lending List – March 2015 

 Time Limit 

Regulation Investments 
(no maximum investment limit) 
  

UK Government T-bills 
UK Government Gilts 

6 months 
12 months 

UK Local Authority 12 months 

  

  

Banks 
 

 

Lloyds Group  
(£5m maximum investment limit) 

call only 

  

  

Money Market Funds (MMFs) 
(maximum investment limit in each 
individual MMF is the lower of 50% 
of total cash or £25m)  
 

 

Goldman Sachs 
J P Morgan 
Deutsche Bank 

call only 
call only 
call only 

Morgan Stanley call only 

Federated  call only 

 
Ignis Short Duration Cash Fund  
 

3 day notice 

 
 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 37



Page 38



Agenda Item 8

Page 39

Not for publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 

of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972

Document is Restricted



Page 46



Agenda Item 9

Page 47

Not for publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 

of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972

Document is Restricted



Page 56



Agenda Item 10

Page 57

Not for publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 

of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972

Document is Restricted



Page 58



Agenda Item 11a

Page 59

Not for publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 

of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972

Document is Restricted



Page 64



Agenda Item 11b

Page 65

Not for publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 

of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972

Document is Restricted



Page 70



Page 71

Not for publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 

of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972

Document is Restricted



Page 72



Page 73

Not for publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 

of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972

Document is Restricted



Page 76



A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 1
2

P
a
g
e

 7
7

N
o

t fo
r p

u
b

lic
a
tio

n
 b

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a

ra
g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 

o
f P

a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d

u
le

 1
2

A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 1

4
2



Agenda Item 13

Page 143

Not for publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 

of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972

Document is Restricted



Page 150



Page 151

Not for publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 

of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972

Document is Restricted



Page 160



Page 161

Not for publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 

of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972

Document is Restricted



Page 168



Page 169

Not for publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 

of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972

Document is Restricted



Page 170



Page 171

Not for publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 

of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972

Document is Restricted



Page 172



Agenda Item 15

Page 173

Not for publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 

of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972

Document is Restricted



Page 176



Page 177

Not for publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 

of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972

Document is Restricted



Page 180


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meeting held on 2 December 2014
	4 Pension Fund Performance and Portfolio of Investments as at 31 December 2014
	Item 4 - Portfolio of investments

	5 Approved Investment Strategy for Pension Fund Cash 2015/16
	8 Exempt Minutes of the Meeting held on  2 December 2014 (exemption paragraph 3)
	9 Property - Confirmation of the action of the Director of Finance and Resources (Exemption Paragraph 3)
	10 Private Equity - Review of position at 31 December 2014 (exemption paragraph 3)
	11a Economic and Market Update
	11b Review of Position as at 31 January 2015
	Item 11b appendix 1 310115 Strategic Benchmark Summary (030315 Agenda Item 11(b) Appendix 1)
	Item 11b appendix 2 RECORD Exec Summary - 0115 (030315 Agenda Item 11(b) Appendix 2))

	12 Pension Fund Performance and Manager Monitoring for the quarter ended  31 December 2014 (exemption paragraph 3)
	13 Corporate Governance and Socially Responsible Investment Report Quarter 4 2014 (exemption paragraph 3)
	Item 13 appendix 3 2014_Q4_LAPFF_Engagement_Report_Public (2) (030315 Agenda Item 13 Appendix 3)
	Item 13 appendix 4 Guide to Responsible Investment - (030315 Agenda Item 13 Appendix 4)
	Item 13 appendix 5a ESG Query - (030315 Agenda Item  13 Appendix 5)
	Item 13 appendix 5b ESG Query response - (030315 Agenda Item  13 Appendix 5)

	15 Manager Presentation (exemption paragraph 3)
	Russell Emerging Markets Fund fact Sheet Jan 2015


